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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Honorable Superintendent and
Board of Trustees

Natrona County School District No. 1
Casper, Wyoming

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statésmeh the governmental activities, the businesgtyp
activities, the discretely presented component, ugitch major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the Natrona County School Distriob.NL, as of and for the year ended June 30, 20iditre
related notes to the financial statements, whidkectively comprise the Natrona County School DistNo.

1's basic financial statements as listed in théetabcontents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Staents

Management is responsible for the preparation ampbfesentation of these financial statementsoorlance
with accounting principles generally accepted ie tbnited States of America; this includes the degsig
implementation, and maintenance of internal contrlavant to the preparation and fair presentatidimancial
statements that are free from material misstatenadrgther due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on thidsencial statements based on our audit. We coeduatr
audit in accordance with auditing standards gelyemacepted in the United States of America andsthadards
applicable to financial audits contained@overnment Auditing Standardssued by the Comptroller General
of the United States. Those standards requirewtbgtlan and perform the audit to obtain reasonag$eirance
about whether the financial statements are fram frmterial misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtainlia evidence about the amounts and disclosurgbdn
financial statements. The procedures selected depethe auditor’s judgment, including the assesgratthe
risks of material misstatement of the financiatesteents, whether due to fraud or error. In makhmmgé risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal caelelant to the entity’s preparation and fair preation of the
financial statements in order to design audit ptloces that are appropriate in the circumstancasydduor the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectigsrud the entity’'s internal control. Accordinglye express

no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating appropriateness of accounting policies usedthed
reasonableness of significant accounting estimatade by management, as well as evaluating the lbvera
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtamedfficient and appropriate to provide a basisolur audit
opinions.



To the Honorable Superintendent and Members oBt@d of Trustees
Natrona County School District No. 1
Casper, Wyoming

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referredbove present fairly, in all material respedts, tespective
financial position of the governmental activitiise business-type activities, the discretely presstoomponent
unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaifuind information of the Natrona County School OatiNo.
1, as of June 30, 2014, and the respective chandi@sincial position, and where applicable, cdskv$é thereof
for the year then ended in accordance with accogntrinciples generally accepted in the United estaif
America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the tebhi States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparidommation as listed in the table of contents besgntéed to
supplement the basic financial statements. Sucbrrrdtion, although not a part of the basic financia
statements, is required by the Governmental Ac@ogrBtandards Board who considers it to be an &@aben
part of financial reporting for placing the basicaicial statements in an appropriate operati@winomic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limigwcedures to the management discussion and enalys
accordance with auditing standards generally aedept the United States of America, which consisiéd
inquiries of management about the methods of pmegpdhe information and comparing the informatiam f
consistency with management'’s responses to ouiriaguthe basic financial statements, and othemkadge
we obtained during our audit of the basic finansi@tements. We do not express an opinion or peoaity
assurance on the information because the limitedgolures do not provide us with sufficient evidehze
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

The budgetary comparison information as listechintable of contents is the responsibility of mamagnt and
was derived from and relates directly to the undegl accounting and other records used to preperdoasic
financial statements. Such information has beejestdd to the auditing procedures applied in thditaaf the
basic financial statements and certain additiomalcgdures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accountingdaother records used to prepare the basic finlancia
statements or to the basic financial statementngblves, and other additional procedures in acooelaith
auditing standards generally accepted in the UrStates of America. In our opinion, the budgetamparison
information is fairly stated, in all material resf® in relation to the basic financial statemest& whole.

Supplementary and Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of formapgnions on the financial statements that colletyiv
comprise the Natrona County School District No. li&sic financial statements. The budgetary commparis
information and schedule of expenditures of fedavedrds, as required by Office of Management andigBt
Circular A-133,Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Peawétpresented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the basam€ial statements.

The budgetary comparison information and scheduéxpenditures of federal awards are the respditgibf
management and were derived from and relate diremtthe underlying accounting and other recordsdus
prepare the basic financial statements. Such irdtom has been subjected to the auditing procedymelied in
the audit of the basic financial statements andateradditional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the ungary accounting and other records used to pregerdasic
financial statements or to the basic financial esteints themselves, and other additional procedures
accordance with auditing standards generally aedet the United States of America. In our opinitme
budgetary comparison information and schedule gfeesitures of federal awards are fairly statedalin
material respects, in relation to the basic finahsiatements as a whole.
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To the Honorable Superintendent and Members oBt@d of Trustees
Natrona County School District No. 1
Casper, Wyoming

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance witsovernment Auditing Standardse have also issued our report dated Novemb20X%} on
our consideration of the Natrona County SchoolrizisNo. 1's internal control over financial repoig and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisiafslaws, regulations, contracts, and grant agredsnand
other matters. The purpose of that report is teriles the scope of our testing of internal contnegr financial
reporting and compliance and the results of thetintg, and not to provide an opinion on internattoal over
financial reporting or on compliance. That reparan integral part of an audit performed in accocdawith
Government Auditing Standards considering Natrona County School District Niés internal control over

financial reporting and compliance.
i, usikead) i ¥ flpeciandd

Porter, Muirhead, Cornia & Howard
Certified Public Accountants
Casper, Wyoming
November 6, 2014



NATRONA COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2014
(Unaudited)

As management of the Natrona County School Distdot 1, we offer readers of the District's finahcia
statements this narrative overview and analysth®financial activities of the District for thegms ended June
30, 2014. We encourage readers to consider themafmn presented here in conjunction with the it
financial statements, notes to the financial stat@sand various supplementary information, whatlofv this
section.

Financial Highlights

The District's total combined net position was $286,372 at June 30, 2014, which compares to $282885
at the beginning of the fiscal year, an increast5&,837,387 (26%).

» During the year, the District's expenses for gonvemntal activities were $190,530,610.

« The District’s total revenue generated in taxebeotevenues and transfers for governmental detvit
was $249,180,404.

» For the District's governmental funds total expensere $243,616,114.

* The District’s total governmental funds revenue %248,565,424 of which $47,955,485 was generated
in taxes.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to sesvanaintroduction to the District's basic finangttements.
The District's basic financial statements are cdsegr of three components: 1) government-wide fir@nc
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 8sno the financial statements. This report atstains other
supplementary information in addition to the bdsiancial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statement§he government-wide financial statements aregaesi to provide
readers with a broad overview of the District'afines, in a manner similar to a private-sectommssi.

The statement of net position presents informationall of the District's assets and liabilities,ttwithe
difference between the two reported as net positier time, increases or decreases in net positioy serve
as a useful indicator of whether the financial posiof the District is improving or deterioratinglowever,
fluctuations from year to year need to be reviewddyht of the timing of funding.

The statement of activities presents informatianalbof the current year's revenues and experegerdless of
when cash is received or paid. Thus, revenues gpehees are reported in this statement for somesitbat
will only result in cash flows in future fiscal peds.

Both of the District's government-wide financiaatetments distinguish the functions of the Distéstbeing
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmiemteenues (governmental activities) as opposdaliginess-
type activities that are intended to recover allaosignificant portion of their costs through u$ees and
charges. The District has only one business-tyfieigc the Enterprise Fund - Cafeteria Fund.

The District participates in oversight of the Na@oCounty Recreation Joint Powers Board (Recre&aard)
and recognizes the Recreation Board as a compamaint The Recreation Board provides funding to the
District for recreational education activities fstudents. They also provide funding through graatsther
agencies offering recreational education for NarGounty children and youth.

Fund financial statementsA fund is a grouping of related accounts that $edito maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specifigtias or objectives. The District, like otheratt and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure andrddrate compliance with finance-related requiresien
The fund financial statements provide more detditéatmation about the District's most significdands - not
the District as a whole.



NATRONA COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2014
(Unaudited)

All of the funds of the District can be divideddnthree categories: governmental funds, propriefiamgds and
fiduciary funds.

Governmental fundsGovernmental funds are used to account for esdignthe same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide fiicial statements. However, unlike the governmeuewi
financial statements, governmental fund financiategnents focus on how money flows into and outhote
funds and the balances left at year-end availalrlesgending in the future periods. Such informaticay be
useful in evaluating a government's near-term fiiveq requirements. Governmental fund informatiotpse
determine whether there are more or fewer finangisburces that can be spent in the near futufimaace
educational programs. The relationship (or diffees) between governmental activities reported i@ th
Statement of Net Position and the Statement ofviiigs and the governmental funds are reconcilethan
financial statements.

Proprietary funds.Proprietary funds are used to account for servimes/hich the District charges participants
a fee. These funds, like the government-wide statésn provide both long- and short-term financial
information. The Enterprise Fund - Cafeteria Fusithe only fund in this category for the District.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resouhegdd for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected ie tjovernment-wide financial statements because the
resources of those funds are not available to supipe District's own programs. The District is tinestee, or
fiduciary, for these funds and is responsible fuswging that the assets reported in these fundgsa for their
intended purposes. All of the District's fiduciagtivities are reported in a separate statemefitdo€iary net
position and a statement of changes in fiduciatyposition. The District has two funds in this gaigy, the
Student Activities Fund and the Construction RetginFund.

Notes to the financial statement§he notes provide additional information thateissential to a complete
understanding of the data provided in the governmahe and fund financial statements.

Other information In addition to the basic financial statements aedompanying notes, this report also
presents certain required supplementary informattian further explains and supports the informaiionhe
financial statements.

The remainder of this page is left blank intentiotya



NATRONA COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2014
(Unaudited)

Financial Analysis of the District as a Whole

The Statement of Net Position provides the perspedf the District as a whole. The following prdes a
summary of the District's net position at JuneZi1l,4:

Condensed Statement of Net Position

2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014
Governmental Business-Type Total School Governmental Business-Type Total School
Activities Activities District Activities Activities District
Current and other assets $ 39,314,777 % 369,317 $ 39,684,094 $ 94,346,131 $ 476,544 $ 94,822,675
Capital assets 203,333,960 142,241 203,476,201 254,948,247 120,679 255,068,926
Total assets 242,648,737 511,558 243,160,295 349,294,378 597,223 349,891,601
Current liabilities 16,983,759 130,984 17,114,743 19,770,675 270,796 20,041,471
Deferred inflows of resources - - - 43,587,100 - 43,587,100
Long-term liabilities 3,274,481 42,086 3,316,567 4,661,485 35,173 4,696,658
Total liabilities 20,258,240 173,070 20,431,310 68,019,260 305,969 68,325,229
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 202,178,668 142,241 202,320,909 252,771,156 120,679 252,891,835
Restricted 3,245,971 - 3,245,971 4,128,345 - 4,128,345
Unrestricted 16,965,858 196,247 17,162,105 24,375,617 170,575 24,546,192
Total net positic $ 222,390,497 $ 338,488 $ 222,728,985 $ 281,275,118 $ 291,254 $ 281,566,372

The net investment in capital assets is $253,889,86ich is the net book value of capital assetg.(éand,
buildings, and equipment) less related debt. Ttetridt uses these capital assets to provide sarticstudents;
consequently, these assets are not available tiarefispending. Although the District's investmenit$ capital
assets is reported net of related debt, it shoaldhdied that the resources needed to repay thisnaest be
provided from other sources. The unrestrictedposition of $23,548,662 may be used to meet thériEtis

ongoing obligations. This surplus is not an indarathat the District has significant resourcesilatée to meet
financial obligations next year, but rather theutesf having current and long-term commitments @ less
than currently available resources.

The District's total net position increased $57,388 during the year ended June 30, 2014. The ¢osilof all

governmental activities this year was $190,530,6068 of the business-type activity was $5,948,27te
amount paid by the State Foundation program wa2,889,128 or 68% of general revenues.

The remainder of this page is left blank intentiotya



NATRONA COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2014
(Unaudited)

Revenues:

Program revenues:
Charges for services
Operating and capital
grants and contributions

General revenues:

Taxes
Governmental aid
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

Expenses:

Regular instruction
Special ed instruction
Vocational ed instruction
Pupil services
Instructional staff services
General admin services
School admin services
Business services

O & M of plant services
Pupil transportation
Central services

Other support services
Interest on long term debt
Food services

Total expenses

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenses

Transfers

Change in net position

Net position -
beginning of year
Prior period adjustment
Net position - beginning of
year as restated

Net position - end of year

Change in the District's Net Position

2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014
Governmental Business-Type Total School Governmental Business-Type Total School
Activities Activities District Activities Activities District
$ 131,283 % 2,108,787 $ 2,240,070 $ 130,068 $ 1,900,624 $ 2,030,692
33,356,717 2,913,430 36,270,147 68,764,551 3,173,418 71,937,969
54,741,072 - 54,741,072 56,469,590 - 56,469,590
123,095,281 - 123,095,281 123,802,155 - 123,802,155
17,598 - 17,598 14,040 - 14,040
211,341,951 5,022,217 216,364,168 249,180,404 5,074,042 254,254,446
(79,449,780) - (79,449,780) (81,746,167) - (81,746,167)
(28,405,105) - (28,405,105) (28,474,360) - (28,474,360)
(1,485,228) - (1,485,228) (1,705,865) - (1,705,865)
(13,454,569) - (13,454,569) (14,134,147) - (14,134,147)
(11,225,947) - (11,225,947) (10,831,165) - (10,831,165)
(1,583,374) - (1,583,374) (1,474,269) - (1,474,269)
(11,035,996) - (11,035,996) (11,220,064) - (11,220,064)
(2,559,354) - (2,559,354) (2,594,508) - (2,594,508)
(22,143,177) - (22,143,177) (22,750,256) - (22,750,256)
(8,576,476) - (8,576,476) (10,555,980) - (10,555,980)
(4,530,778) - (4,530,778) (4,852,163) - (4,852,163)
(165,910) - (165,910) (164,747) - (164,747)
(91,461) - (91,461) (26,919) - (26,919)
- (5,853,907) (5,853,907) - (5,948,276) (5,948,276)
(184,707,155) (5,853,907) (190,561,062)  (190,530,610) (5,948,276) (196,478,886)
26,634,796 (831,690) 25,803,106 58,649,794 (874,234) 57,775,560
(827,000) 827,000 - (827,000) 827,000 -
25,807,796 (4,690) 25,803,106 57,822,794 (47,234) 57,775,560
196,582,701 343,178 196,925,879 222,390,497 338,488 222,728,985
- - - 1,061,827 - 1,061,827
196,582,701 343,178 196,925,879 223,452,324 338,488 223,790,812
$ 222,390,497 $ 338,488 $ 222,728,985 $ 281,275,118 $ 291,254 $ 281,566,372




NATRONA COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2014
(Unaudited)

Financial Highlights of the District's Funds

Governmental Funds

General Fund

The General Fund receives a majority of its revethueugh the State of Wyoming School FoundationcBlo
Grant. The Block Grant is comprised of tax coilets and a foundation entittement. Taxes for tbarywere
$47,955,485 or 28% of total general revenue, aaddbndation entittement was $122,389,128 or 7 1%t
General Fund revenue. The District expended $832459 on student instruction through the GeneualdF
This represents 61% of this fund’s total expendi#ur The balance of expenditures is in supportasscroom
instruction.

Program Fund
The Program Fund experienced a 5% decrease ingmnogrant revenues. Federal grants accounted dor th
majority of this decrease.

Capital Maintenance Fund
The funding for this activity remains stable angbisvided by the State of Wyoming to do major maaince
on existing District facilities.

Capital Projects

During the year, the District continued design andstruction on three new elementary schools, lare thigh
schools. The funding for these projects is praditly State Capital Construction grants from theteStd
Wyoming.

Proprietary Funds

Cafeteria Fund

The District experienced an anticipated loss indperation of this program. The District will conte to use a
combination of meal price increases, cost contaiimand fund transfers to return this activity to self-
sufficiency.

Budgetary Highlights
Routine budget transfers occurred during the figeal ended June 30, 2014. These transfers ditheratase
or decrease the overall budget.



NATRONA COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2014
(Unaudited)

Capital Assets

District's Capital Assets (Governmental Activities)(Net of depreciation)

2012-2013 2013-2014

Land and improvements $ 30,081,386 $ 30,179,135
Buildings and improvements 143,678,472 138,967,836
Equipment 1,455,115 1,337,608
Vehicles 4,254,879 4,813,926
Construction in progress 23,864,108 79,649,742
Total $ 203,333,960 $ 254,948,247

Long-term debt

The following is a summary of the governmental faidebt transactions of the District for the yeatezhJune
30, 2014:

Debt outstanding at July 1, 2013 $ 5,498,117
New debt issued 2,274,119
Debt retired 2,603,345

Debt oustanding at June 30, 2014 $ 5,168,891

Factors Affecting the District’'s Future

The District receives approximately 80% of its mewes from state and federal sources. This means a
significant portion of the District’s resources aifnom sources outside of the control of the Baardirustees.
Obtaining sufficient resources to educate the stisdef Natrona County will largely be dependentiom state

and federal agencies currently providing funding.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide ouizeins, taxpayers, customers and creditors witlerzeigl
overview of the District's finances as well as dastmte accountability for funds the District reess.
Questions concerning any of the information prodide this report or requests for additional infotima
should be addressed to the Superintendent, Stepkitép 970 North Glenn Road, Casper, WY 82601.
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NATRONA COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

STATEMENT OF NET POSITIOI

June 30, 201
Primary Governmel
Government: Business-typ Recreatior
Activities Activities Total Boarc
ASSETS
Current asse
Cash and cash equivale $ 36,223,563 $ 195,642 $ 36,419,205 $ 1,211,141
Property taxes receival 45,340,202 - 45,340,202 1,437,406
Due from other governmei 10,021,347 57,975 10,079,322 -
Due from component ul 1,069,307 1,069,307 -
Prepaid expens 404,506 - 404,506 -
Receivables net of $76,523 allowa - 76,523 76,523 -
Inventorie: 501,206 146,404 647,610 -
Asset held on behalf (
the State of Wyomir 786,000 - 786,000 -
Lanc 20,914,431 - 20,914,431 -
Construction in progre 79,649,742 - 79,649,742 -
Capital assets, being depreciated 154,384,074 120,679 154,504,753 -
Total asse! 349,294,378 597,223 349,891,601 2,648,547
LIABILITIES
Current liabilitie!
Accounts payab 12,154,492 173,288 12,327,780 -
Accrued wages payat 5,729,448 - 5,729,448 -
Advance payments on gra 593,329 - 593,329 -
Due to other governme 786,000 - 786,000 -
Due to primary governme - - - 1,069,307
Deferred revent - 95,119 95,119 -
Noncurrent liabilitie
Due within one ye: 507,406 2,389 509,795 -
Due in more than one ye 4,661,485 35,173 4,696,658 -
Total liabilities 24,432,160 305,969 24,738,129 1,069,307
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred revenue property ta 43,587,100 - 43,587,100 1,406,035
Total deferred inflows of resourc 43,587,100 - 43,587,100 1,406,035
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, |
of related det 252,771,156 120,679 252,891,835 -
Restricted fc
Federal, state, and local gre 387,638 - 387,638 173,205
Major maintenance - WS 21-15-1 3,740,707 - 3,740,707 -
Unrestricte: 24,375,617 170,575 24,546,192 -
Total net positio $ 281,275,118 $ 291,254 $ 281,566,372 $ 173,205

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
11



NATRONA COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended June 30, 2C

Program Revenu

Operatiny Capita
Charges fc Grants an Grants an
Function/Progran Expense Service Contribution: Contribution:
Governmental activitie
Instructior
Regular $ 81,746,167 $ 130,068 $ 3,740,592 $ -
Special 28,474,360 - 5,193,897 -
Vocational educatio 1,705,865 - 324,619 -
Support service
Pupil service: 14,134,147 - - -
Instructional staff service 10,831,165 - 6,330,062 -
General administration servic 1,474,269 - 162,309 -
School administration servic 11,220,064 - 486,928 -
Business service 2,594,508 - - -
Operation and maintenar
of plant service: 22,750,256 - - -
Pupil transportation servict 10,555,980 - - -
Central service 4,852,163 - - 52,526,144
Other support servic 164,747 - - -
Interest on long-term de 26,919 - - -
Total governmental activiti 190,530,610 130,068 16,238,407 52,526,144
Business-type activiti
Food Service Fun 5,948,276 1,900,624 3,173,418 -
Total business-type activiti 5,948,276 1,900,624 3,173,418 -
Total primary governme $ 196,478,886 $ 2,030,692 $ 19,411,825 $ 52,526,144

Component un
Recreation Boal 1,785,839

$ 1785839 $

General revenu
Taxe:

Property taxes, levied for general purpc
Property taxes, levied for specific purp
Federal, State and Local aid not restricted toifipgmirpose

State Foundation Progre
Other state source
Other source

Interest and investment earni

Transfer
Total general revenu

Change in net ass

Net position - beginning of year

Prior period adjustment

Net position - beginning of year as restated

Net position - end of ye

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net /

Government: Business-typ Recreatior
Activities Activities Total Boarc
$ (77,875,507) - $ (77,875,507) $ -
(23,280,463) - (23,280,463) -
(1,381,246) - (1,381,246) -
(14,134,147) - (14,134,147) -
(4,501,103) - (4,501,103) -
(1,311,960) - (1,311,960) -
(10,733,136) - (10,733,136) -
(2,594,508) - (2,594,508) -
(22,750,256) - (22,750,256) -
(10,555,980) - (10,555,980) -
47,673,981 - 47,673,981 -
(164,747) - (164,747) -
(26,919) - (26,919) -
(121,635,991) - (121,635,991) -
- (874,234) (874,234) -
- (874,234) (874,234) -
(121,635,991) (874,234) (122,510,225) -
- - - 1,785,839
- - - 1,785,839
49,813,406 - 49,813,406 -
6,656,184 - 6,656,184 1,538,064
122,389,128 - 122,389,128 -
872,580 - 872,580 -
540,447 - 540,447 -
14,040 - 14,040 503
(827,000) 827,000 - -
179,458,785 827,000 180,285,785 1,538,567
57,822,794 (47,234) 57,775,560 (247,272)
222,390,497 338,488 222,728,985 1,482,304
1,061,827 - 1,061,827 (1,061,827)
223,452,324 338,488 223,790,812 420,477

$ 281,275,118 $ 291,254 $ 281,566,372 $ 173,205
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NATRONA COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 201
Capita
Progran Maintenanc
Genere Func Func
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivale $ 31,896,825 $ - $ 4,062,846
Property tax receivak 45,340,202 - -
Due from other governmel - 2,023,542 -
Due from other func 467,432 - -
Due from component u - 1,069,307 -
Prepaid expens 404,506 - -
Inventorie: 501,206 - -
Asset held on behalf of the State of Wyon 786,000 - -
Total asset $ 79,396,171 $ 3092849 $ 4062846
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts and contracts paya $ 3,648,622 567,672 $ 322,139
Accrued wages payal 5,721,977 7,471 -
Due to other func - 467,432 -
Advance payments on grants - 593,329 -
Due to other governme 786,000 - -
Total liabilities 10,156,599 1,635,904 322,139
Deferred inflows of resourc
Deferred revenue property ta 44,003,042 - -
Deferred due from component L - 1,069,307 -
Total deferred inflows of resourc 44,003,042 1,069,307 -
Fund balance
Nonspendab
Prepaid expens 404,506 - -
Inventory 501,206 - -
Restricted fc
Federal, state, and local gre - 387,638 -
Major maintenance projects - WS 21-15- - - 3,740,707
Committed tc
Capital projects and ott 7,350,204 - -
Assignet 10,244,324 - -
Unassigne 6,736,290 - -
Total fund balances (defici 25,236,530 387,638 3,740,707
Total liabilities and fund balanc: $ 79,396,171 $ 3092849 $ 4062846

Amounts reported for governmental activities in sketement of net assets are different bec
Capital assets used in governmental activitiesiatdinancial resources an
therefore, are not reported in the fui
Revenues in the statement of activities that dgonmtide current financial resourt
are not reported as revenues in the governmenmntet
Property tax revenue - current y
Reimbursements from School Facilities Departmexntrrent yee
Due from component ut
Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable dadse purchase obligatic
are not due and payable in the current period lagcktore
are not reported in the fun
Net position of governmental activit

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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Capita
Project:
Func

Total
Government:
Funds

$ 263,892

6,847,569

$ 36,223,563
45,340,202
8,871,111
467,432
1,069,307
404,506
501,206
786,000

S 7111461

$ 7,616,058

$ 93,663,327

$ 12,154,491
5,729,448
467,432
593,329
786,000

7,616,058

19,730,700

44,003,042
1,069,307

45,072,349

(504,597)

404,506
501,206

387,638
3,740,707

7,350,204
10,244,324
6,231,693

(504,597)

28,860,278

S 7111461

254,948,247

415,942
1,150,235
1,069,307

(5,168,891)
$ 281,275,118
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NATRONA COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IRUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2C

Capita
Generg Progran Maintenanc
Func Func Func
Revenue
Taxe! $ 47,955,485 $ - $ -
Intergovernmental revent 124,703,688 16,230,928 6,656,185
Charges for servic 130,068 - -
Miscellaneou 587,878 - -
Investment incon 10,672 - 3,368
Total revenue 173,387,791 16,230,928 6,659,553
Expenditure
Instructior
Regular 77,960,653 4,053,827 -
Special 23,240,083 5,234,277 -
Vocational educatio 1,533,723 285,100 -
Support service
Pupil service: 14,121,648 12,499 -
Instructional staff service 4,412,077 6,419,089 -
General administration servic 1,359,672 114,597 -
School administration servic 10,793,500 418,994 -
Business service 2,505,175 - -
Operation and maintenance of plant serv 16,556,440 - 5,469,724
Pupil transportation servici 10,994,414 - -
Central service 4,117,839 - -
Other support service 164,747 - -
Facilities, acquisitions ar
construction service - - -
Debt servic
Principal 1,103,250 - -
Interest 26,919 - -
Total expenditure 168,890,140 16,538,383 5,469,724
Excess (deficiency) of revent
over expenditure 4,497,651 (307,455) 1,189,829
Other financing sources (us
Transfers ot (5,149,959) - -
Transfers i 3,634,487 - -
Proceeds from lease financ 1,094,558 - -
Total other financing sources (us (420,914) - -
Net change in fund balanc 4,076,73 (307,455) 1,189,82
Fund balances (deficits) - beginning of y 21,159,79 695,09: 2,550,878
Fund balances (deficits) - end of y $ 25,236,530 $ 387,638 $ 3,740,707

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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Capita
Project:
Func

Total
Government:
Funds

52,287,152

$ 47,955,485
199,877,953
130,068
587,878
14,040

52,287,152

248,565,424

52,717,867

82,014,480
28,474,360
1,818,823

14,134,147
10,831,166
1,474,269
11,212,494
2,505,175
22,026,164
10,994,414
4,117,839
164,747

52,717,867

1,103,250
26,919

52,717,867

243,616,114

(430,715)

(3,634,487)
4,322,959

4,949,310

(8,784,446)
7,957,446
1,094,558

688,472

267,558

257,75

(762,354)

5,216,868

23,643,410

$

(504,597)

$ 28,860,278
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NATRONA COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERVMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year Ended June 30, 2014

Amounts reported for governmental activities in stegement of
activities are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmentad$u $ 5,216,868

Governmental funds report capital outlays as exiperes. However, in
the statement of activities, the cost of thosetassallocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciattpense. This is
the amount by which capital outlays exceeded tipeedgation expense
and loss on disposal of buildings in the curremigae

Capital outlay $ 59,139,783
Reclassification of prior year construction in pregs to fixed assets (599,488)
Loss on disposal of vehicles (47,434)
Depreciation expense (6,878,574) 51,614,287

Issuance of capital leases provides current firhmesources to
governmental funds. (1,094,558,

Repayment of principal on long-term debt is an exiere in the
governmental funds, but the repayment reduces temg-iabilities in
the statement of net assets. 1,103,251

Long-term liabilities for compensated absencesratalnages are not due
and payable in the current period and thereforeatreeported in

the funds.
Retainage payable - current year (1,179,561)
Retainage payable - prior year 1,155,292
Compensated absences - current year (2,991,800)
Compensated absences - prior year 3,336,602 320,533

Revenues in the statement of activities that dgnotide current
financial revenues are not reported as revenuieifunds.

Property tax revenue - current year 415,942

Due from component unit - current year 1,069,307

Due from component unit - prior year (prior peradjustment) (1,061,827)

Reimbursements from School Facilities Departmexnirrent year 1,150,235

Reimbursements from School Facilities Departmemior year (911,244 662,413
Change in net position of governmental activ $ 57,822,794

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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NATRONA COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND
June 30, 2014

Business-Typ

Activities-
Enterpris:
Func
Cafeterii
Fund
ASSETS
Current asse
Cash and cash equivale $ 195,642
Due from other governmel 57,975
Receivables net of $76,523 allowa 76,523
Inventorie: 146,404
Total current asse 476,544
Noncurrent asse
Machinery and equipment, net of accumul
depreciatio 120,679
Total asse! 597,223
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 173,288
Deferred revenue 95,119
Compensated absences 37,562
Total current liabilities 305,969
NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets, net of related 120,679
Unrestricte! 170,575
Total net positio $ 291,254

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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NATRONA COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUNNEET POSITIONM
PROPRIETARY FUNL
Year Ended June 30, 2(C

Business-Typ

Activities-
Enterpris:
Func
Cafeteri
Fund
Operating revenu
Charges for servic $ 1,900,624
Total operating revenu 1,900,624
Operating expens
Salarie 1,658,531
Benefits 1,122,180
Direct food costs including supplies and mainter 3,146,003
Depreciation expen 21,562
Total operating expens 5,948,276
Net loss from operatio (4,047,652)
Nonoperating revenu
Federal subsic 3,173,418
Total nonoperating revent 3,173,418
Net loss before transfe (874,234)
Transfers i 827,000
Change in net positic (47,234)
Net position - beginning of ye: 338,488
Net position - end of ye: $ 291,254

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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NATRONA COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW¢
PROPRIETARY FUNIL
Year Ended June 30, 2(C

Cash Flows from Operating Activiti
Receipts from customers and u:
Payments to suppliers for goods and ser
Payments to employees for serv

Net cash and cash equivalents used in operatingtas
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activit

Operating transfers
Federal subsic

Net cash and cash equivalents provide
noncapital financing activiti
Net decrease in cash and cash equive

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of

Cash and cash equivalents - end of

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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Business-Typ
Activities-
Enterpris:

Func
Cafeterii
Fund

$ 1,919,220
(2,824,181)
(2,787,908)

(3,692,869)

827,000
2,858,397

3,685,397

(7,472)

203,114

$ 195,642



NATRONA COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUEI
PROPRIETARY FUNI

Year Ended June 30, 2014

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash arsheguivalent
used in operating activiti

Operating los
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to
cash and cash equivalents used in operating ae¢
Depreciatiol
USDA commodities received without paym
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivaleuodtime
from changes in operating assets and liabi
Inventorie:
Receivable
Accounts payab
Deferred revent
Accrued wages payal
Compensated absen
Net cash and cash equivalents used in operatingtias

Schedule of non-cash transacti
USDA commodities valued at $314,062 at June 304.

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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Business-Typ
Activities-
Enterpris:

Func
Cafeteri
Fund

$ (4,047,652)

21,562
314,062

(37,217)
(76,523)
44,977
95,119

(159)
(7,038)

$ (3.692,869)



ASSETS
Cast

Total asse!

LIABILITIES
Accounts payab
Retainage payat
Due to student grou
Total liabilities

NET POSITION
Restricte!

Total net positio

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
June 30, 2014

23

NATRONA COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITIOI

Constructiol
Retainage Fur

Studen
Activities Func

$ 1,420,497 $ 1,867,169
1,420,497 1,867,169
- 83,015
1,420,497
- 1,784,154
1,420,497 1,867,169
$ - $ -

See accompanying notes to the financial statements



NATRONA COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Reporting Entity

Natrona County School District No. 1 serves coustits of the City of Casper as well as a numbeotioér
communities within Natrona County, Wyoming. Thesfiict provides public education for students from
kindergarten through grade twelve in four senioghhischools, eight junior/middle schools, twenty-two
elementary schools and four rural schools.

The District's Board of Trustees has responsibiiter all activities related to public elementanglaecondary
school education within Natrona County. The Distreceives funding from federal, state and localegnment
sources and must comply with requirements fromehlemding sources. Generally accepted accounting
principles require that the reporting entity inauthe primary government, organizations for whiuod primary
government is financially accountable and otherpizations for which the nature and significancethafir
relationship with the primary government are sulght texclusion would cause the reporting entity'siba
financial statements to be misleading or incomplétke accompanying financial statements presenbDthtrict

and its component unit, an entity for which thetfis is considered financially accountable. Thsctetely
presented component unit is reported in a sepatenn in the government-wide financial statemgste
note below for description) to emphasize that iegally separate from the District.

Discretely Presented Component Unit

The District has participated in the creation af tatrona County Recreation Joint Powers Boardr@aéon
Board) as authorized by Wyoming Statutes. Threebfive members of the governing body of the Retion
Board are members of the District’'s Board of Traste The Recreation Board does not have a quortinouti
the three members of the District’'s Board of Traste The Recreation Board is a separate legalyemi is
accountable for its own activities. The Natronau@ty Recreation Joint Powers Board does not issparate
financial statements.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e. statement of net position and the statement afigémin net
position) report information on all of the nonfiday activities of the primary government and isnponent
unit. For the most part, the effect of interfuradivaty has been removed from these statementsvefBmental
activities, which normally are supported by taxed mtergovernmental revenues, are reported seghafadbm
business-type activities, which rely to a signific@xtent on fees and charges for support. Likewike
primary government is reported separately fromlétgally separate component unit for which the prima
government is financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the detigrednich the direct expenses of a given functiosegment
is offset by program revenues. Direct expenseshaige that are clearly identifiable with a specitinction or
segment. Program revenues include 1) chargesstoroers or applicants who purchase, use, or dirbethefit
from goods, services, or privileges provided byweg function or segment and 2) grants and cortiobs that
are restricted to meeting the operational or chpguirements of a particular function or segmenaxes and
other items not properly included among prograneneies are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for movental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciamgds, even
though the latter are excluded from the governmmgdé financial statements. Major individual govaental
funds and major individual enterprise funds arertu as separate columns in the fund financiéstants.
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NATRONA COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policie¢Continued)

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and FinaatBtatement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are redousing the economic resources measurement focls a
the accrual basis of accounting, as are the prapyiéund, fiduciary fund, and discretely presentedthponent
unit financial statements. Revenues are recordeshvearned and expenses are recorded when atyiaili
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cleivs. Property taxes are recognized as revenudsei year
for which they are levied. Grants and similar itelsre recognized as revenue as soon as all etigibil
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are repantadg the current financial resources measurefioeois

and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Regse are recognized as soon as they are both rabksand

available. Revenues are considered to be availada they are collectible within the current pdrir soon

enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the curngetiod. For this purpose, the District considesgenues to be
available if they are collected within 60 days od £nd of the current fiscal period. Expenditgeserally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as undemraakcaccounting. However, debt service expendituas well

as expenditures related to compensated absencetaimd and judgments, are recorded only when payise
due.

Property taxes, and interest associated with thesicufiscal period are considered to be susceptiblaccrual
and so have been recognized as revenues of ttentfigcal period. All other revenue items aresidared to
be measurable and available only when cash isveatdiy the District.

The District reports the following major governmarfunds:

The general fundis the District's primary operating fund. It aceas for all financial resources of the
District, except those required to the accountednfanother fund.

The program fundis a special revenue fund that accounts for tbegads of specific federal, state, and
local grant sources that are legally restricteéxpenditure for specified purposes. Tdregramfund

also accounts for the proceeds from capital maartea property taxes levied on the District's behalf
and the State’s matching funds. Capital mainteman@enditures associated with these sources are
recorded in this fund.

The capital maintenance funé a special revenue fund that accounts for tlueqeds from capital
maintenance property taxes levied on the DistribEhalf and the State’s matching funds. Capital
maintenance expenditures provided for these soameesecorded in this fund. The District recoggize
this as a special revenue fund.

The capital projects fundaccounts for the proceeds of specific revenuecgguthat are restricted to
expenditures for the construction and renovatiosesferal school and district facilities. The fuado
accounts for the associated acquisition of lanchéw building construction. Theapital projectsfund
also accounts for the accumulation of resourcesdiod the payment of expenditures associated with
technological improvements throughout the District.
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NATRONA COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting PoliciegContinued)

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and FinaatBtatement Presentation (Continued)
The District reports the following major proprietdund:

The cafeteria fundaccounts for the activities of the District's daféas, which prepare and serve breakfast and
lunch to District students. Major sources of raxemclude charges for services and operating gfaom the
Federal government.

Additionally, the District reports the following rfidls:

The student activity funds an agency fund used to account for the Di&rigtany student activities. The
District’s responsibility for these activities islficiary in nature.

The construction retainage funts an agency fund used to account for the Di&ricbnstruction retainage
amounts that have been deposited in a joint acaeitimthe contractor.

Amounts reported as program revenues include ligebato customers or applicants for goods, seryvimes
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and cbuations, and 3) capital grants and contributiotrgternally
dedicated resources are reported as general reyeatleer than as program revenues. Likewise, gkner
revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenuesd expenses from nonoperating items. Operatingnies
and expenses generally result from providing sessand producing and delivering goods in connedtiitim a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operationsheTprincipal operating revenues of the Districtgegprise
fund are charges to students and faculty for faogtises. Operating expenses for enterprise fumclade the
cost of sales and services, administrative experesgd depreciation on capital assets. All reverams
expenses not meeting this definition are reportedamoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resourcesnaaitable for use, it is the District's policy tse restricted
resources first, then unrestricted resources asaieeneeded.

Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resourcesid Net Position or Equity

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flowsDikgict considers all cash on hand and demandsitgpto be
cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

The District considers all accounts receivableddily collectible at June 30, 2014, except fag tieceivable
for unpaid meal recorded in the cafeteria fund. Thstrict recorded $76,523 as an allowance for tfolib
accounts, which represents 50% of the total rebégva

Interfund Balances

On the fund financial statements, receivables aaghlples resulting from short-term interfund loame a
classified as “Due from other funds/Due to otherdsl. These amounts are eliminated in the goventahand
business-type activities columns of the statemémtctivities columns of the statement of net positiexcept
for the net residual amounts due between goverrahant business-type activities.
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NATRONA COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policie¢Continued)

Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resourcesid Net Position or Equity (Continued)

Property Taxes

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien guepioas of January 1 of each year. Property taredevied
on or about August 1 and are due in two installmerihe first installment becomes due on Septerhlaerd
delinquent on November 10; the second becomes midaoch 1 and delinquent on May 10. The Countlg bil
and collects its own property taxes as well asgdre all municipalities and political subdivisiomsthin the
County, including Natrona County School District.Nlo District property tax revenues are recognizten
levied to the extent that they result in curreereables, which means when collected within theesu period
or expected to be collected within 60 days of tiseal year end to be used to pay liabilities of toerent
period. Property taxes which are not current xed#es are offset by deferred revenues on the finadcials,
but are reported on the government-wide finandatksnents as revenue and receivables, with no ameing
deferred when levied. Property taxes receivabderacognized as of the lien date; however, revéesuet
recognized until the levy date.

The District is permitted by Wyoming Statutes teyléaxes up to twenty-five mills of assessed vaturafor all
school purposes, exclusive of bond interest andmgdion. An additional six mills must also be kxlion the
assessed valuation of the county. The District mlap levy up to one mill for the Recreation Boarthe
combined tax rate related to financing general sthervices other than the payment of principal emerest
on long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2@kithirty-two mills all of which was levied.

Inventories and Prepaid Items

Inventory is valued at average cost. Inventoryhi@ General Fund consists of expendable suppliesfoe
consumption. Inventories of governmental fundsracerded as expenditures when consumed rathemtham
purchased. Reported inventories are equally offgedt fund balance reserve, which indicates thay tto not
constitute “available spendable resources” evenghdhey are a component of net current assets.

Proprietary fund inventories are accounted for gisire consumption method by which inventory acdjoiss
are recorded in inventory accounts when purchaseeceived by other means and are charged to espyemsn
consumed or sold. Inventory in the Lunch Fund mief food product including USDA food commoditie
held for consumption.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs appkc#blfuture accounting periods and are recordepreysaid
items in both government-wide and fund financiatestnents.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, agdipment, are reported in the applicable governaher
business-type activities columns in the governmrgde financial statements. Capital assets arendéfby the
District as assets with an initial, individual ca$tmore than $100,000 for buildings and buildingprovements,
$50,000 for land and land improvements, $5,000hfachinery and equipment and vehicles, and an dstiima
useful life in excess of two years. Such assetsrecorded at historical cost or estimated hisabrapst if
purchased or constructed. Donated capital assetseaorded at estimated fair market value at tie of
donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs thabtadd to the value of the asset or materialtgreck asset
lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capiassets and improvements are capitalized asgsofe
constructed.
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NATRONA COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policie¢Continued)

Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resourcesid Net Position or Equity (Continued)

Capital Assets (Continued)

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary goment are depreciated using the straight line noether
the following estimated useful lives.

Land improvements 20 years
Buildings and building improvements 25 — 50 gear
Machinery and equipment 5 — 20 years
Vehicles 5—-12 years

Deferred Outflows

In addition to liabilities, the statement of fingagposition will sometimes report a separate sactor deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financialestent element, deferred inflows of resources, sgmts an
acquisition of net position that applies to a fetyreriod(s) and so will not be recognized as alovnfof
resources (revenue) until that time. The Disthies two types of items that qualify for reporting this
category. Unavailable revenue is reported in tiegnmental funds balance sheet. The governmémtdb
report unavailable revenues from two sources: ptgpexes and grants. These amounts are defemdd a
recognized as an inflow of resources in the petfiad the amounts become available. In the goventwie
Statement of Net Position, only property taxesraported as a deferred inflow of resources. Pigpaxes are
recognized as an inflow of resources in the yegy #re levied.

Compensated Absences

The District's permanent classified and certifigdffs including administrators, earn nine to tweblays sick
leave a year with unlimited accumulation. Whenassified or certified employee, or administratades the
District, all days accumulated above 50 are patkat $55 or $60 a day, respectively.

All administrators are entitled to vacation leaveh® beginning of their contract year. Adminigira are not
paid for unused vacation leave when they resigmetire. Also, Administrators cannot carry-over sed
vacation from one contract year to the next. @fiaskstaff earns vacation leave on a graduatebt stepending
on the length of service. At a minimum, one-hdlfte earned days must be taken within the yeareglr The
remainder is vested and can be accumulated upnexamum of 30 days.

All accumulated vacation and vested sick leave ployng with applicable employee benefits, are amtnuhen
incurred in the government-wide and proprietarytesteents. A liability for these amounts is reporiad
governmental funds only if they have matured, faample, as a result of employee resignations and
retirements.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftyrmith generally accepted accounting principleguiees

management to make estimates and assumptionsftbei the reported amounts of assets and lialsliiad

disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitiethatdate of the financial statements and the regamounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting peActlal results could differ from those estimates.
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NATRONA COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policie¢Continued)

Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resourcesid Net Position or Equity (Continued)

Fund Balances

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund beda Fund balance is further classified as nordgids,
restricted, committed, assigned, or unassignednsplendable fund balance cannot be spent becaugs of
form. Restricted fund balance has limitations isgm by creditors, grantors, or contributors or hgiding
legislation or constitutional provisions. The nrajpaintenance fund balance is restricted by WyonState
Statute 21-15-109. Committed fund balance is d@adimon imposed by the District's Board of Trustedse
highest level of authority, through approval in thinutes. The District does not have a writterigydio assign
amounts to a specific purpose; however the Boamsiders the Board’'s budget reserve and the District
encumbrances as assigned amounts. Unassigneddlamte in the General Fund is the net resourcesdess
of what can be properly classified in one of thewabfour categories. Negative unassigned fundnialdn
other governmental funds represents excess expessliincurred over the amounts restricted, comdyitbe
assigned to those purposes. Proprietary fundyegpuitassified the same as in the government-widgements.

The capital project fund has a deficit fund balaaseof June 30, 2014. This deficit will be finatidbrough
transfers from the Board’s general fund budgetrjtigs.

When both restricted and unrestricted fund balarmgesavailable for use, it is the District's polity use
restricted fund balance first, then unrestrictettifbalance. Furthermore, committed fund balanoesesluced
first, followed by assigned amounts, and then tigassl amounts when expenditures are incurred fguqses
for which amounts in any of those unrestricted foathnce classifications can be used.

At June 30, 2014 the District’'s general fund assijfund balance consisted of the Board's budgetvesand
District encumbrances in the amounts of $8,3254(0%$1,919,324, respectively.

The District's general fund committed balances casepof the Board’s budget priorities which coresisof the
following as of June 30, 2014:

CAPS - program development and leadel $ 389,407
Contingency for unfunded items related to the hsighools renovation and construction 6,722,897
Former CYJH Gym Proje 237,900

Total Committec $ 7,350,204
Note 2. Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund FinanciaStatements

Explanation of certain differences between the gowmental fund balance sheet and the government-wide
statement of net position

The governmental fund balance sheet includes ancdi@iion between fund balance — total governmiefotads
and net position — governmental activities as rggbm the government-wide statement of net pasiti®ne
element of that reconciliation explains that “Lomgm liabilities, including bonds payable and lepsechase
obligations, are not due and payable in the cupenibd and therefore, are not reported in the $und
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NATRONA COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

Note 2. Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fundrinancial Statements (Continued)

Explanation of certain differences between the gowmental fund balance sheet and the government-wide
statement of net position (Continued)

The details of this $(5,168,891) difference aréodews:

Compensated absen $ (2,991,800)
Capital lease obligatio (997,530)
Retainage payak (1,179,561)

$ (5,168,891)

Note 3. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting
The District follows these procedures in estabtigithe budgetary data reflected in the financeteshents:

Prior to May 15, the Superintendent submits toBbard of Trustees a proposed operating budgehofiscal

year commencing the following July 1. The opematiidget includes proposed expenditures and thesrafa
financing them. A public hearing is conducted loa third Wednesday in July to obtain public commerthe

budget is adopted by the third Thursday of July.

At the request of the Superintendent or upon ita awtion after publication of notice, the BoardTafistees
may by resolution transfer any unencumbered or pereded appropriation balance or part thereof from o
fund, department or account to another. All appatipns, excluding appropriations for capital i, lapse
at the close of the budget year to the extent Hreynot expended or encumbered. The level of ekpea
control for budget purposes is the department level

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a mamagt control device during the year for the Gdriemad
and Special Revenue Funds.

Budgets for the General, Special Revenue and Cdpidgect Fund are adopted on a cash basis (NON®BGAA
Such basis is not consistent with generally acceateounting principles (GAAP).

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase qrdensracts, and other commitments for the exparalivf
monies are recorded in order to reserve that podidhe applicable appropriation, is employed m&x@ension
of formal budgetary integration during the yeanc&mbrances outstanding at year end are immaterial.

Note 4. Cash

Custodial credit risk — deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the evehf bank failure, the District’'s deposits may betreturned to
it. Neither the District nor Recreation Board, iacdetely presented component unit, has a depo8itypfor
custodial credit risk; however, Wyoming State sa&0-4-820 requires all political subdivisionsctilateralize
bank deposits in excess of amounts insured by dderal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). Agwife
30, 2014, the District’s bank balances in excedsfC were collateralized with securities held bg pledging
financial institution’s trust department or agentjoint custody of the bank and the District.
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NATRONA COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

Note 5. Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers
The composition of interfund balances as of June&8@4, is as follows:

Due to/from other funds:

Receivable Payable
General Fun $ 467,432 $ -
Program Fun - 467,432
$ 467,432 $ 467,432

These balances resulted from the time lag betweerdates that (1) interfund goods and servicespareided or
reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactioagecorded in the accounting system, and (3) patsrigetween
funds are made.

Transfers:

Transfers i Transfers ol
General Fun $ 3,634,487 $ 5,149,959
Capital Projects Fur 4,322,959 3,634,487
Cafeteria Fun 827,000

$ 8784446 $ 8784446

Interfund transfers reflect the general fund’'s sarppf other specific District activities accountt in the Capital
Projects Fund and Cafeteria Fund approved by tlzedBaf Trustees.

Note 6. Capital Assets

A summary of changes in governmental-activitiestehpssets are follows:
Primary Governme

Balanct Balanct
June 30, 201 Additions Retirement June 30, 201
Governmental activitie
Capital assets, not being depreci
Lanc $ 20,534,445 $ 379,986 $ - $ 20,914,431
Construction in progre 23,864,108 56,385,122 599,488 79,649,742
Total capital assets, r
being depreciate 44,398,553 56,765,108 599,488 100,564,173
Capital assets, being depreci:
Land improvemen 12,337,915 328,110 - 12,666,025
Buildings and improvemer 216,900,639 271,378 - 217,172,017
Machinery and equipme 6,665,150 201,612 - 6,866,762
Vehicles 11,010,513 1,573,575 958,969 11,625,119
Total capital assets bei
depreciate 246,914,217 2,374,675 958,969 248,329,923
Less accumulated depreciation
Land improvemen 2,790,974 610,347 - 3,401,321
Buildings and improvemer 73,222,167 4,982,014 - 78,204,181
Machinery and equipme 5,210,035 319,119 - 5,529,154
Vehicles 6,755,634 967,094 911,535 6,811,193
Total accumulated depreciation 87,978,810 6,878,574 911,535 93,945,849
Total capital assets, bei
depreciated, n 158,935,407 (4,503,899) 47,434 154,384,074
Governmental activities capi
assets, n $ 203,333,960 _$ 52,261,209 _$ 646,922 _$ 254,948,247
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NATRONA COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

Note 6. Capital Assets (Continued)

The depreciation expense for governmental actsvitithe amounts of $5,698,666, $115,911, $7,589,383,
and $967,094, was charged to operation and maimteraf plant services, regular instruction, studetivities,
business services, and pupil transportation sesyviespectively.

Summary of changes in business-type activitiesabgssets are as follows:

Balanct Balanct
June 30, 201 Additions Retirement June 30, 201

Business-type activitit
Capital assets beir

depreciate
Machinery and equipme $ 823247 $ - $ - $ 823,247
Total capital asse
being depreciate 823,247 - - 823,247

Less accumulate
depreciation fc

Machinery and equipme 681,006 21,562 - 702,568
Total accumulate
depreciaio 681,006 21,562 - 702,568
Business-type activiti
capital assets, r $ 142241 $ (21562 _$ - $ 120,679
Note 7. Long-term Debt

Wyoming Statute §21-13-703 limits the amount ofelniédness for the District to not more than 10%hef
assessed value of taxable property within the DistiThe District complied with this debt limitati.

The following is a summary of debt transactionshef District for the year ended June 30, 2014.

Balanct New Deb Debt Balanct Due Withir
June 30, 201 Incurrec Retirec June 30, 201 One Yea
Governmental Activitie
Compensate
absence $ 3,336,602 $ - $ 344,802 $ 2,991,800 $ 190,294
Capital lease 1,006,223 1,094,558 1,103,251 997,530 317,112
Retainage payak 1,155,292 1,179,561 1,155,292 1,179,561

$ 5498117 $ 2274119 $ 2,603,345 $ 5168,891 $ 507,406

Business-type Activitie
Compensate
absence $ 44,600 $ - $ 7,038 $ 37,562 $ 2,389

Long-term debt related to governmental activitieggénerally liquidated by the general fund exceptthie
retainage payable which is liquidated by the majaintenance or capital projects fund.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

Note 7. Long-term Debt (Continued)
Debt outstanding at June 30, 2014 is comprisedenfdllowing issues:

Capital Leases Payable

Lease/purchase for Xerox copiers, due in annuahpays of $151,144 at 1.8: $ 124,915
interest through April 20!

Vehicles, due in annual payments of $226,80680%. interest through June 2( 872,615
$ 997,530

Future minimum lease payments under capital letmgpsther with the present value of net minimum deas
payments as of June 30, 2014 are as follows:

Year ended June

201« $ 352,759
201t 226,806
201¢ 226,806
2017 226,806

Total minimum paymen 1,033,177
Less amount representing inte 35,647

Net future minimum lease payme $ 997.530

Note 8. Retirement Commitments

The District's full-time and regular part-time emytes participate in the Wyoming Retirement System
(System), a cost-sharing multiple-employer publitgpioyee retirement system. The plan providesaetimt
benefits at age 60 with early retirement optionsilable. The plan also provides disability andtidzenefits.
Benefits are established by state statute. Thee®yssues a publicly available financial reposdttimcludes
financial statements and required supplementargrimétion. That report may be obtained by writilng t
Wyoming Retirement System, 6101 Yellowstone Roafth FFloor, Cheyenne, Wyoming 82002 or by calling
(307) 777-7691.

The System statutorily requires 14.12% of the cedeamployee's salary to be contributed to the pfamhich
1.43% is paid by the employee and the remainin§92.is paid by the District. The District's cohtriions to
the System for the years ended June 30, 2014, 2042012 were $14,459,706, $13,780,051 and $13740,
respectively, equal to the required contributiamsefach year.

In addition, District employees are eligible totpapate voluntarily in the District's 403(b) antyiplan and the
state sponsored 457 deferred compensation plassa part the employee benefit package, the Distratthes
up to $36 for all insurance eligible employees wlext to contribute to the deferred compensatian.pl
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June 30, 2014

Note 9. Risk Management Programs

The District is exposed to various risks of loslates] to torts; theft of, damage to, and destructib assets;
error and omissions; injuries to employees; andrahtdisasters. As a result, the District cardesumber of
commercial insurance policies covering these ahdraisks. Policy limits include approximately $6898,000

on real and personal property; $10,655,000 on ctenpequipment and media; $1,145,000 on musical
equipment; $2,000,000 general liability aggreg&te000,000 commercial auto liability; $1,000,000pkogee
benefit liability aggregate; $1,000,000 errors angssions aggregate; $5,000,000 excess liabil&@0F00 on
employee dishonesty; and $500,000 on forgery atedations. The District also participates in twhey risk
management programs: Workers' Compensation Actaiednployment Compensation Act.

Wyoming Statute §27-14-101 created the Wyoming WirkCompensation Act, which is administered as an
Enterprise Fund by the State of Wyoming. All enypls within the State of Wyoming are participanitshis
plan unless the employer elects not to be covenednthe plan. This act requires the Districtlitam liability
coverage for payment of benefits to employees ébrglated injuries and diseases through the Wsrker
Compensation Fund. This act provides general gtiote from suits filed by employees against thetiRis

The District makes monthly payments to the Depantnoé Employment, State of Wyoming. This amount is
based on salaries and a split rate between hazahmlinon-hazardous positions. Amounts paid b{pthteict

to the State for Worker's Compensation during figear 2014 were approximately $1,406,061.

Wyoming Statute §27-3-101 created the Unemployr@emipensation Act. This act requires the Distogbay
the cost of actual claims incurred. Changes inbiddances of claim liabilities during fiscal yed12 are as
follows for the District's participation in the Umgloyment Compensation Act Program:

201
Unpaid claims, beginning of fiscal yt $ -
Incurred claim 35,555
Claim paymeni (35,555)
Unpaid claims, end of fiscal ye $ -
Note 10. Insurance Benefits

The District participates in the State of Wyomingpmoyee medical, life and dental insurance progtiaat is
co-administered with a third-party health providkim service company. The State self-insures ca¢dind
dental costs and assumes all the risk for claimsried by plan participants. The State does riatrr@ny risk
of loss for the life insurance plan as the insueapcovider assumes all the risk for claims incurtsd
participants.

The District contributes $663 per month for singdeticipant, $1,317 for a participant plus a spo&4¢008 for

a participant plus children, $1,506 per participgtfamily, or $753 for married couples both of whiare
employed by the District or another State agencyfeurance premiums for covered participants todwdhese
plans. Participants are responsible for payingnpmen charges in excess of this amount. The Distric
contributed $28,126,396 to this plan for the yaatesl June 30, 2014.

The District participates in a long-term disabilggogram and contributes 100% of the premium pentméor
each eligible employee at the rate of $0.257 p80%if payroll. The District does not retain anyrig loss for
the long-term disability program as the insurarexgier assumes all the risk for claims incurrecbsticipants.

Additionally, the District contributed .6% of beitefl payroll to the State as a subsidy for retberefits. The
required contribution for the year ended June BQ42vas $588,916.
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Note 11. Commitments and Contingencies

The District is involved in ongoing litigation arskveral asserted claims. The District's insurgmides
coverage for these claims; however, the Districy tma liable for its $100,000 deductible relatedty specific
case. This aggregate deductible has not beeneatt@ince the outcome of these matters is not pitgsen
determinable. In management’s opinion, the resmutif these matters will not have a material adveféect
on the financial condition of the District.

At June 30, 2014, the District had several outstapatonstruction contracts. The District has emgag
construction companies to build schools and perfoenmtain capital maintenance and remodeling prejéltie
following projects are currently in progress or @d@een completed at June 30, 2014:

Projec Contract Amour Complete: Outstandin

Major maintenanc $ 473,160 $ 171,756 $ 301,404
CAPS 38,694,946 3,819,936 34,875,010
Dean Morgan Middle Schor 12,198,242 8,339,837 3,858,405
KHWS Renovation 92,267,103 17,926,874 74,340,229
Midwes! 76,824 43,598 33,226
NCHS Main Building Renovatiol 107,106,581 11,329,920 95,776,661
NCHS SFAC/Swing Spa 14,139,509 13,322,070 817,439
North Casper Elemente 13,058,601 4,498,119 8,560,482
Pineview Elementa 913,429 253,195 660,234
Roosevelt High Scho 1,239,264 831,565 407,699
Southridge Elementa 10,798,628 10,769,118 29,510

Total $ 290,966,287 $ 71,305,988 $ 219,660,299

In December 2004, the District purchased a partctra for the development of the Fort Casper Eletagy
School. The total purchase of this land, includixpenses such as land appraisals and archeological
investigation, was $1,666,888 and was reimbursethbyState School Facilities Department. This laad
determined to be unsuitable as a building siteHferFort Casper Elementary School. In April 200, District
purchased a more suitable site for the Fort Casmmentary School for $1,570,000. The District batered

into an agreement with the State School Faciliepartment to sell the parcel of land purchaseddnember
2004 and to reimburse the School Facilities Diviskd,666,888 upon the sale of the property. Duttiegfiscal

year ended June 30, 2012, the District determihedvalue of the land decreased and reduced the ‘alu
$786,000 based on an appraisal. The District plarisold the land until the value increases toeast the
amount originally paid.

Note 12. Transactions with Component Unit and Prior Period Adjustment

For the fiscal year the District received $1,06Z,&hd also recorded a receivable of $1,069,307 fiwen
Recreation Board for professional development.

While preparing the financial statements for ttsedi year ended June 30, 2014, the District rehlibat the
amount received from the Recreation Board in 2@&ptasented their allocation for the fiscal yeareghdune
30, 2013. This resulted in a prior period adjustiriacreasing the District’s total net position $3,061,827
and decreasing the Recreation Board’s total netgroby the same amount.
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June 30, 2014

Note 13. Subsequent Events

The District did not have any other subsequent svitmough November 6, 2014, the date at whicHittzcial
statements were available to be issued for eventsining recording or disclosure in the financiatements for
the year ended June 30, 2014.

Note 14. Accounting Standards Issued, But Not Implemented

As of June 30, 2014, the Governmental Accountiram&irds Board has issued the following standardshwh
the Natrona County School District No. 1 may impégrnin its next fiscal year.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statememt &8, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions—an amendment of GASB Statement NwafTssued to improve accounting and financiabtagug

by state and local governments for pensions. b amsproves information provided by state and local
governmental employers about financial supportpfemsions that is provided by other entities. Thate®nent
results from a comprehensive review of the effestass of existing standards of accounting and diahn
reporting for pensions with regard to providing idem-useful information, supporting assessments of
accountability and interperiod equity, and creatimiglitional transparency. Management has not cdadlits
assessment of the effect of implementing this qudda

Remainder of this page left blank intentionally
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NATRONA COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - (NON-GAAP
GENERAL FUNLC

Year Ended June 30, 2C

Revenue
Taxe:
Intergovernment;
Charges for servic
Interes
Miscellaneou
Total revenue

Expenditure
Instructior
Elementary instructic
Junior high instructic
Senior high instructic
Programs for students w
disabilities
Tuition for students wit
disabilities
Gifted and talente
Homebound instructic
Other special prograr
Student activitie
Vocational instructic
Total instruction servict

Instructional suppao
Counseling servici
Student records servic
Assessment servic
Social work service
Health service
Psychological servic
Speech servic
Audiology service
Occupational therapy servic
Physical therapy servic
Supervision instruction servic
Curriculum and instructic
development servic
Staff training service
School library service
Audiovisual service
Supervision of special educat
service
Total instructional suppc
service

See note to required supplementary information.

Variance wit!
Final Budge
Budgeted Amoun Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative

$ 46,992,201 $ 46,992,201 47,355,141 $ 362,940
124,101,067 124,101,067 124,690,112 589,045
131,250 131,250 130,068 (1,182)
21,000 21,000 10,672 (10,328)
459,000 459,000 587,878 128,878
171,704,518 171,704,518 172,773,871 1,069,353
39,577,541 39,577,541 39,488,440 89,101
18,584,479 18,584,479 18,364,389 220,090
23,385,852 23,385,852 22,073,622 1,312,230
19,948,272 19,948,272 19,777,012 171,260
1,500,000 1,500,000 1,166,024 333,976
358,401 358,401 406,606 (48,205)
200,000 200,000 174,973 25,027
1,601,371 1,601,371 1,597,456 3,915
3,774,256 3,774,256 3,361,749 412,507
1,273,575 1,273,575 1,523,280 (249,705)
110,203,747 110,203,747 107,933,551 2,270,196
3,296,285 3,296,285 3,283,074 13,211
394,023 394,023 380,470 13,553
340,695 340,695 387,661 (46,966)
1,127,286 1,127,286 1,164,008 (36,722)
1,926,083 1,926,083 1,781,125 144,958
1,509,201 1,509,201 1,453,078 56,123
1,535,718 1,535,718 1,479,961 55,757
172,927 172,927 152,150 20,777
529,562 529,562 478,464 51,098
213,157 213,157 180,134 33,023
85,554 85,554 58,236 27,318
1,280,991 1,280,991 1,334,646 (53,655)
1,383,718 1,383,718 1,017,199 366,519
2,223,129 2,223,129 1,883,252 339,877
213,339 213,339 234,746 (21,407)
170,235 170,235 154,232 16,003
16,401,903 16,401,903 15,422,436 979,467
(Continued)



NATRONA COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP

General suppc
Superintende!
Community relation
School administratio
Business servic
Warehouse/Purchasing servi
Multimedia service
Board of education servic
Employee relatior
Building service
Equipment servict
Grounds servict
Security service
School transportatic
Activity transportatio
Staff transportation servic
Personnel servic
Information technolog

Total general support servic

Total expenditure

Excess (deficit) of revenu
over expenditure

Other financing sources (us
Transfers i
Transfers ot
Board budget reser
Board reserve for prioritit
Total other financing us

Change in fund balance

Fund balance -
beginning of year

Fund balance - end of year

GENERAL FUND (Continuec

Year Ended June 30, 2(C

Variance witl
Final Budge
Budgeted Amoun Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative
$ 381,073 $ 381,073 $ 352,081 $ 28,992
102,855 102,855 65,099 37,756
10,747,538 10,747,538 10,795,562 (48,024)
1,413,730 1,413,730 1,230,889 182,841
634,101 634,101 743,842 (109,741)
664,271 664,271 530,419 133,852
495,402 495,402 475,225 20,177
496,084 496,084 449,391 46,693
17,974,179 17,974,179 15,877,756 2,096,423
328,747 328,747 267,596 61,151
759,085 759,085 735,832 23,253
197,410 197,410 179,514 17,896
9,773,802 9,773,802 8,885,760 888,042
651,151 651,151 667,658 (16,507)
217,000 217,000 162,944 54,056
1,518,041 1,518,041 1,504,274 13,767
3,006,701 3,006,701 2,748,039 258,662
49,361,170 49,361,170 45,671,881 3,689,289
175,966,820 175,966,820 169,027,868 6,938,952
(4,262,302) (4,262,302) 3,746,003 (8,008,305)
3,223,188 3,223,188 3,634,487 411,299
(11,320,992) (11,320,992) (827,000) 10,493,992
(7,825,000) (7,825,000) - 7,825,000
(2,027,049) (2,027,049) (4,322,959) (2,295,910)
(17,949,853) (17,949,853) (1,515,472) 16,434,381
(22,212,155) (22,212,155) 2,230,531 $ 24,442,686
22,390,852 22,390,852 22,390,852
$ 178,697 $ 178,697 $ 24,621,383

See note to required supplementary information.
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NATRONA COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - (NON-GAAP
PROGRAM FUNL

Year Ended June 30, 2(C

Revenue
Intergovernment;
Total revenue

Expenditure
Curren
Instructional service
Instructional support servic
General support servic
Total expenditure

Excess (deficit) of revenu
over expenditure

Change in fund balance

Fund balance (deficit)
beginning of yes

Fund balance (deficit) - end of yi

See note to required supplementary information.

40

Variance witl
Final Budge
Budgeted Amoun Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative
$ 17,125000 _$ 17,125000 _$17,246,642 $ 121642
17,125,000 17,125,000 17,246,642 121,642
9,900,000 9,900,000 9,736,164 163,836
6,600,000 6,600,000 6,462,213 137,787
746,000 746,000 540,215 205,785
17,246,000 17,246,000 16,738,592 507,408
(121,000) (121,000) 508,050 629,050
(121,000) (121,000) 508,050 $ 629,050
(1,133,104) (1,133,104) (1,133,104)
$ (1.254104) _$ (1,254104) _$ (625,054)



NATRONA COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - (NON-GAAP
CAPITAL MAINTENANCE FUND
Year Ended June 30, 2C

Variance witl
Final Budge
Budgeted Amoun Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative
Revenue
State maintenance gri $ 5915869 $ 5915869 $ 6,656,185 $ 740,316
Interes 5,000 5,000 3,368 (1,632)
Total revenue 5,920,869 5,920,869 6,659,553 738,684
Expenditure
Curren
Capital maintenance servic 9,225,249 9,225,249 5,898,051 3,327,198
Total expenditure 9,225,249 9,225,249 5,898,051 3,327,198
Change in fund balan (3,304,380) (3,304,380) 761,502 $ 4.065.882

Fund balance
beginning of yet 3,301,34. 3,301,344 3,301,34.

Fund balance (deficit) - end of y: $ (3,036) $ (3,036) $ 4.062.846

See note to required supplementary information.
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NATRONA COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

June 30, 2014

Note 1. Explanation of Differences between BudgetaBasis and GAAP Basis
Capita
General Progran Maintenance
Fund Fund Fund
Revenue
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) fi
the Budgetary Comparison Schec $ 172,773,871 $ 17,246,642 $ 6,659,553
Differences - Budget Basis to GA.
Accrual of property taxes receival 1,029,862 - -
Accrual of grants receivab - (422,385) -
Accrual of deferred grant rever - (593,329) -
Accrual of deferred property tax revel (415,942) - -
Total revenues as reportec
the Statement of Revenu
Expenditures and Change:
Fund Balances - Governmer
Fund: $ 173387791 _$ 16,230,928 _$ 6,659,553
Expenditure
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) fi
the Budgetary Comparison Sched $ 169,027,868 $ 16,738,592 $ 5,898,051
Differences - Budget Basis to GA.
Prepaid expens (14,643) - -
Inventorie! (10,365) - -
Accrual of accounts payab (1,718,776) 6,354 (428,327)
Accrual of salaries and benefits paya 511,498 (206,563) -
Proceeds from lease financ 1,094,558
Total expenditures as reportec
the Statement of Revenu
Expenditures and Change:
Fund Balances - Governmer
Fund: $ 168,890,140 _$ 16,538,383 _$ 5,469,724
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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NATRONA COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - (NON-GAAP

Revenue
Intergovernment:
Total revenue

Expenditure
Curren
Capital outlay - capital constructi
Total expenditure

Excess (deficit) o
expenditures over revent

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources

Change in fund balance

Fund balance (deficit)
beginning of yee

Fund balance (deficit) - end of y

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUN!

Year Ended June 30, 2C

44

$ (510,035 _$ (510,035 _$ 263,891

Variance witt
Final Budge
Budgeted Amoun Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative
$ 51,392,776 $51,392,776 $49,191,711 $ (2,201,065)
51,392,776 51,392,776 49,191,711 (2,201,065)
58,704,000 58,704,000 49,146,677 9,557,323
58,704,000 58,704,000 49,146,677 9,557,323
(7,311,224) (7,311,224) 45,034 7,356,258
10,493,992 10,493,992 4,322,959 (6,171,033)
(3,223,188) (3,223,188) (3,634,487) (411,299)
7,270,804 7,270,804 688,472 (6,582,332)
(40,420) (40,420) 733,506 773,926
(469,615) (469,615) (469,615)



SINGLE AUDIT
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NATRONA COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended June 30, 2014

Federe Pass Throug
CFDA Grantor"
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Numbe Numbe Expenditure
U.S. Department of Agricultu
Passed through the State of Wyoming Departmentiat&ior
Child Nutrition Cluste
School Breakfast Progre 10.553 - $ 471,072
National School Lunch Progr: 10.555 - 1,950,293
National School Lunch Program - USDA Commaod 10.555 - 314,062
Summer Food Service Program for Children 10.559 - 124,718
Total Child Nutrition Cluste 2,860,145
Child and Adult Food Care Progr. 10.558 - 17,910
Fresh Fruit and Vegetables Program 10.582 - 294,404
Total U.S. Department of AgricultL 3,172,459
Department of Defense National Security Age
Language Grant Progr: 12.900 H98230-13-1-011 58,613
Language Grant Progr: 12.900 H98230-14-1-007 2,846
Total Department of Defense National Security Agt 61,459
U.S. Department of Educati
Passed through the State of Wyoming Departmentiat&iot
Title I, Part A
Title | - Grants to Local Educational Agenc 84.010/ 12130123AIA( 97,258
Title I - Grants to Local Educational Agenc 84.010/ 13130133AIAC 143,744
Title I - Grants to Local Educational Agenc 84.010/ 1313013T1A0 1,359,507
Title I - Grants to Local Educational Agenc 84.010/ 1413014T1A0 2,437,927
Title I - Grants to Local Educational Agenc 84.010/ 1313013T1DO 306,983
Title I - Grants to Local Educational Agenc 84.010/ 1413014T1DO0 244,875
Total Title I, Part A 4,590,294
Passed through the State of Wyoming Departmentia€&ior
Special Education Clust
Special Education - Grants to St 84.027/ 12130127610 211,173
Special Education - Grants to Stz 84.027/ 13130137610 2,930,129
Special Education - Grants to St 84.027/ 14130147610 4,985
3,146,287
Special Education - Preschool Gr: 84.173/ 12130127690 6,474
Special Education - Preschool Gr: 84.173f/ 13130137690 2,475
8,949
Total Special Education Clus 3,155,236
Passed through the State of Wyoming Departmentiat&iot
Career and Technical Education - Basic Grantsdte! 84.048f 1313013VEAO! 133,104
Career and Technical Education - Basic Grantsdte! 84.048¢ 1413014VEAOI 166,090
299,194
(Continued)
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NATRONA COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINED)
Year Ended June 30, 2014

Federa Pass Throug

CFDA Grantor:
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Numbe Numbe Expenditure
U.S. Department of Education (Continu
Passed through the State of Wyoming Departmentiat&ior
Education for Homeless Children and Yc 84.19¢ 1313013HOMA( $ 41,591
41,591
——————
Passed through the State of Wyoming Departmentiat&ior
Twenty-First Century Community Learning Cen 84.287C 1313011C5CQC 98,479
98,479
——
Passed through the State of Wyoming Departmentia€&ior
English Language Acquisition State Gr 84.365/ 1313013T3EO 20,999
English Language Acquisition State Gre 84.365/ 1413014T3EO 31,011
English Language Acquisition State Gre 84.365/ 1213012T3I0 1,550
— 53,560
Passed through the State of Wyoming Departmentiat&ior
Improving Teacher Quality State Gre 84.367f 1213012T2A0 31,414
Improving Teacher Quality State Gre 84.367f 1313013T2A0 1,299,950
Improving Teacher Quality State Gre 84.367/ 1413014T2A0 68,885
1,400,249
Passed through the State of Wyoming Departmentia€&ior
School Improvement Grants Clus
ARRA - School Improvement Grants, Recovery 84.388/ 1113011AGIA( 70,036
70,036
Total U.S. Department of Educat 9,708,639
U.S. Department of Health and Human Sen
Direct prograr
Drug-Free Communities Support Program Gt 93.27¢ H79SP011598-( 57,297
Drug-Free Communities Support Program Gt 93.27¢ 5H79SP011598-( 35,940
93,237
Passed through the State of Wyoming Departmentia€&ior
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families Cl
Temporary Assistance for Needy Famil 93.55¢ - 415,972
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 509,209
Total Federal Gran $ 13,451,766
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NATRONA COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL ARDS
June 30, 2014

Note 1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Fedarards includes the Federal grant activity ofrhiaa
County School District No. 1 and is presented @ndéish basis of accounting. The information ia fithedule
is presented in accordance with the requiremen@\B Circular A-133 Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations Therefore, some amounts presented in this stheday differ from amounts
presented in, or used in the preparation of, tisecfmancial statements.

Note 2. Commodities

Natrona County School District No. 1 purchases couities from the United States Department of Adtice
at discounted prices. The value of commoditiehénamount of $314,062 was included in the Nufmit@uster
on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.

Note 3. Fiscal Agent

During the year ended June 30, 2014, the Distdtgdhas fiscal agent for federal funds receivedemalf of
preschools within the State. The State contradts thie preschools using Temporary Assistance feedy
Families funds, CFDA 93.558, and the District pthes funds to the preschools at the State’s instmst Total
funds disbursed to the preschools were $36,865.
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PORTER, MUIRHEAD, CORNIA & HOWARD

(A Corporation of Certified Public Accountants)

MC

123 West First Street  Suite 800 P.O. Box 2750 Casper, Wyoming 82602  (307) 265-4311 Fax (307) 265-5180

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTINGND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITHGOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Honorable Superintendent and Members
of the Board of Trustees

Natrona County School District No. 1

Casper, Wyoming

We have audited, in accordance with the auditiagddrds generally accepted in the United Statégradrica

and the standards applicable to financial auditg#ained inGovernment Auditing Standardssued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the foi@nstatements of the governmental activities, ibhsiness-
type activities, the discretely presented componmit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaihingd

information of Natrona County School District Ng.ak of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, hencetated
notes to the financial statements, which colletyivaomprise Natrona County School District No. basic

financial statements, and have issued our reperétm dated November 6, 2014.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the finadtatements, we considered Natrona County Sdbistrict
No. 1's internal control over financial reportinigtérnal control) to determine the audit procedutest are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purposexpfessing our opinions on the financial statesamit not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on thectiffeness of Natrona County School District Na. ibternal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinionthe effectiveness of Natrona County School RisMo.
1's internal control.

A deficiency in internal contragéxists when the design or operation of a contoalsdnot allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing tlaisigned functions, to prevent, or detect andectrr
misstatements on a timely basis.material weaknesss a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
internal control, such that there is a reasonabbsipility that a material misstatement of the tgigtifinancial
statements will not be prevented, or detected amcected on a timely basis. gignificant deficiencyis a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, iteimal control that is less severe than a matesmakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those chairgith governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for theiled purpose described in the first paragrapthisf section
and was not designed to identify all deficienciasiriternal control that might be material weaknesee
significant deficiencies. Given these limitatiodsying our audit we did not identify any deficieegiin internal
control that we consider to be material weakneddesiever, material weaknesses may exist that havbaen
identified.
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To the Honorable Superintendent and Members
of the Board of Trustees

Natrona County School District No. 1

Page 2

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance abouthe@hdélatrona County School District No. 1's finaaici
statements are free from material misstatemenpeavfwrmed tests of its compliance with certain jBimns of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreemaots;ompliance with which could have a direct aratamal
effect on the determination of financial statemamiounts. However, providing an opinion on compleandth
those provisions was not an objective of our awadit] accordingly, we do not express such an opiribe
results of our tests disclosed no instances of oroptiance or other matters that are required toeiperted
underGovernment Auditing Standards

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to descrila gbope of our testing of internal control and cliemge and
the results of that testing, and not to providepimion on the effectiveness of the entity’s intdroontrol or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of aitperformed in accordance withovernment Auditing
Standardsin considering the entity’s internal control anahpliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

fhtiy Pluihead) o, % o]

Porter, Muirhead, Cornia & Howard
Certified Public Accountants
Casper, Wyoming
November 6, 2014
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PORTER, MUIRHEAD, CORNIA & HOWARD

(A Corporation of Certified Public Accountants)

MC

123 West First Street  Suite 800 P.O.Box 2750 Casper, Wyoming 82602  (307) 265-4311 Fax (307) 265-5180

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAAMND REPORT ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Honorable Superintendent and Members oBtiad of Trustees
Natrona County School District No. 1
Casper, Wyoming

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Natrona County School District Ne.compliance with the types of compliance requigats
described in th®©MB Circular A-133 Compliance Suppleméhat could have a direct and material effect on
each of Natrona County School District No. 1's mdederal programs for the year ended June 30, .2014
Natrona County School District No. 1's major fedgpeograms are identified in the summary of audstor
results section of the accompanying schedule dftfiys and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with thguirements of laws, regulations, contracts, arahtgr
applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on cliamge for each of Natrona County School Distriet. N's
major federal programs based on our audit of tipegyof compliance requirements referred to above. W
conducted our audit of compliance in accordanch aitditing standards generally accepted in theedritates

of America; the standards applicable to financiaits contained iltovernment Auditing Standardssued by
the Comptroller General of the United States; aiBCircular A-133,Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit OrganizationsThose standards and OMB Circular A-133 requiea tie plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whaetirerompliance with the types of compliance requéets
referred to above that could have a direct and niaateffect on a major federal program occurred. dArdit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence aatrona County School District No. 1's compliangith
those requirements and performing such other pryesdas we considered necessary in the circumstance

We believe that our audit provides a reasonablés as our opinion on compliance for each majoreied
program. However, our audit does not provide alldggermination of Natrona County School Distriai.N’s
compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Natrona County School District Nb.complied, in all material respects, with the typd
compliance requirements referred to above thatdchalve a direct and material effect on each ofriggor
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2014.
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To the Honorable Superintendent and Members
of the Board of Trustees

Natrona County School District No. 1

Page 2

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Natrona County School District Nas tesponsible for establishing and maintainingaffe
internal control over compliance with the typescompliance requirements referred to above. In prenand
performing our audit of compliance, we consideredribha County School District No. 1's internal aohbver
compliance with the types of requirements that ¢ddve a direct and material effect on each majderfal
program to determine the auditing procedures thatagpropriate in the circumstances for the purpafse
expressing an opinion on compliance for each miajderal program and to test and report on intecoatrol
over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular 231 but not for the purpose of expressing an opiio
the effectiveness of internal control over compi@nAccordingly, we do not express an opinion oa th
effectiveness of Natrona County School District ifs.internal control over compliance.

Our consideration of internal control over comptiarwas for the limited purpose described in theguting
paragraph and was not designed to identify allctfcies in internal control over compliance thagjirh be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies thedefore, material weaknesses or significantciities
may exist that were not identified. However, ascdssed below, we identified certain deficienciegternal
control over compliance that we consider to be terfa weakness and a significant deficiency.

A deficiency in internal controbver complianceexists when the design or operation of a contraro
compliance does not allow management or employieethe normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, nomg@nce with a type of compliance requirement déderal
program on a timely basis. AMaterial weakness in internal control over comptiaris a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal controleoxcompliance, such that there is a reasonabléhildgshat
material noncompliance with a type of compliancguieement of a federal program will not be preventar
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We denghe deficiency in internal control over comptia
described in the accompanying schedule of findiewgd questioned costs as item 2014-002 to be a ialater
weakness.

A significant deficiency in internal control over cplianceis a deficiency, or a combination of deficienciis,
internal control over compliance with a type of g@di@ance requirement of a federal program that $s kevere
than a material weakness in internal control owenmliance, yet important enough to merit attentigrthose
charged with governance. We consider the defigiéncinternal control over compliance describedthe

accompanying schedule of findings and questionstbas item 2014-001 to be a significant deficiency
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To the Honorable Superintendent and Members
of the Board of Trustees

Natrona County School District No. 1

Page 3

Natrona County School District No. 1's responseht® internal control over compliance finding idéetl in

our audit is described in the accompanying scheadiufandings and questioned costs. Natrona Co&utyool
District No. 1's response was not subjected toathditing procedures applied in the audit of commé& and
accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

The purpose of this report on internal control osempliance is solely to describe the scope oftesting of
internal control over compliance and the resultshat testing based on the requirements of OMBUGircA-
133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable foryaother purpose.

fhty Mluihead) Gon b ¢osnd)

Porter, Muirhead, Cornia & Howard
Certified Public Accountants
Casper, Wyoming
November 6, 2014
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NATRONA COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Year Ended June 30, 2014

SECTION | - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued

Internal control over financial reporting
Material weaknesses identified?
Significant deficiencies identified?

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs
Material weaknesses identified?
Significant deficiencies identified?
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance fajanprograms

Any audit findings disclosed that are required eéadported
in accordance with Section 510(a) of Circulat 238?

Identification of major programs:
Special Education Cluster
Special Education - Grants to St:
Special Education - Preschool Gr:
Total Special Education Clus

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families - Wyomiagly
Enrichment Progra

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Unmodified

No

No

No

Yes
Yes

Unmodified

Yes

84.027#
84.173#

93.55¢

$403,553

Yes

$ 3,146,287
8,949

3,155,236

415,972

$ 3,571,208

SECTION Il — FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

None Reported
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NATRONA COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINDf
Year Ended June 30, 2014

SECTION Il - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

2014-001

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Babseugh Wyoming Department of Education
93.558 — Temporary Assistance for Needy Famili#¢yeming Early Enrichment Programs

Criteria:

Only a financially needy family that consists of,aaminimum, a minor child living with a parent other
caretaker relative, may receive TANF assistancenarfeially “needy” is defined as financially elidggb
according to the State’s quantified income anduesocriteria to receive the benefit.

Condition:

The District provided TANF assistance to childréattmay have failed to meet the definition of ficially
“needy”. The potential incorrect determination aigibility resulted from an unclear definition d@ficome
utilized for the determination. The District exdd overtime from the definition of income without
determining whether the overtime was a predictabkporadic source of income. Additionally, thewacy of
child support amounts included on the enrolimempliegtion was not verified in some cases. The gnaartager
reviewed the eligibility determination and foundthhe additional verification of income should di#ained.
The grant manager’s findings were not resolved.

Questioned Costs:
None
Context:

Eligibility was tested on thirty-eight children oof 156. This sample included two children in whithe
overtime was excluded without determining the pdiility of the income and the child support wagt n
verified for one child. We believe these circumsis were not isolated incidents.

Effect:
None
Cause:

The definition of income used and the requiremémteerify amounts included on the enroliment apilmn
were unclear.

Recommendation:

The District employees with responsibility for éfidity determinations should obtain adequate franon the
eligibility requirements. The quality control pemtures performed by the grant manager must incufieal
review and resolution of the questioned eligibility

Views of responsible officials and planned correcte actions:

The district has re-examined protocols and prosefseverifying and determining eligibility and Wwijprovide
training for all personnel with those responsilgit The corrective measure is the grant mangges¢hool
coordinator) will insure quality control by conding a final review of all TANF applications and ome
eligibility from all families who apply.
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NATRONA COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINDf
Year Ended June 30, 2014

SECTION IIl - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued)

2014-002
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Passed through Wyoming Department of Education
93.558 — Temporary Assistance for Needy Familig¢yoming Early Enrichment Programs
Criteria:

Only expenses related to services to TANF eligifiiddren can be allocated to the TANF grant. Athrg
expenses must show the formula for how the allonatif expenses is determined for TANF eligible atgh
enrolled.

Condition/Context:

The District neglected to allocate expenses usirgriamula based on TANF eligible children. The aainu
salaries of the eight TANF preschool teachers pdtildl TANF funds were not allocated based on the Imemof
TANF children in the classroom. During the graetipd, the District’'s allowable TANF costs exceedked
costs reimbursed by the grant, resulting in no toesd cost.

Questioned Costs:
None

Effect:

None

Cause:

The grant was awarded to the District by the Wyanridepartment of Education (WDE) based on servirg) 15
eligible children. The District’s budget was pnetsel to the WDE outlining that the award would perg for
certified salaries and benefits at the Districighe preschools. The District served more thanrthmber of
eligible children that were outlined in the grappkcation. As long as 158 eligible children congd to be
enrolled, the District believed it was unnecesgargllocate the costs incurred at the TANF prestharothe
teacher salaries and benefits based on eligiblérehi

Recommendation:

Expenses that relate to services provided to TAINfibée children should be allocated to the TANRugr based
on eligible children enrolled.

Views of responsible officials and planned correcte actions:

The District believed and was given written perimissrom the Wyoming Department of Education tatrthe
TANF grant funds as a block grant. Our understagaias that as long as we served the 158 eligtildren,

for whom the District received funding, that adulital children could be served and that TANF gramidf
always are supplemented by Title | federal preschows. The allocation of TANF funds during th@12-13

and 2013-14 school years appears out of the ogdlmerause of conflicting and erratic informatiooyded to
the District by Wyoming Department of EducationfistaTANF grant funds are by no means sufficienserve
all 380 preschool age children served by the RistriThe corrective measure the District will iriplent is the
allocation of TANF grant funds to schools, basedifmpercentage of income eligible children in eschool

program. Supplemental funding for all preschoalgnams will be provided by Title | federal preschiumds.
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NATRONA COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS
Year Ended June 30, 2014

None.
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